# Santa Barbara City College College Planning Council Tuesday, February 2, 2010 3:00 pm – 4:30 pm A218C Minutes

- PRESENT: A. Serban (Chair), I. Alarcon, O. Arellano, L. Auchincloss, P. Bishop, S. Ehrlich, R. Else, J. Friedlander, T. Garey, A. Garfinkel, M. Guillen, K. Molloy, K. Monda, D. Nevins, J. Sullivan,
- ABSENT: C. Salazar
- GUESTS: C. Alsheimer-Barthel, K. O'Connor, A. Orosco, A. Scharper, M. Spaventa, L. Stark, L. Vasquez,

Superintendent/President Serban called the meeting to order. Dr. Serban provided five handouts to the CPC Members.

1. Approval of Minutes from the January 26, 2010 CPC Meeting (attachment)

# M/S/C [Bishop/Guillen] to approve the amended minutes of the January 26, 2010 CPC meeting.

### Information Items/Announcements

- 2. Superintendent/President Serban and the CPC members wished VP Arellano a Happy Birthday!
- 3. Superintendent/President Serban stated that the Dean of the Science Division, Marilyn Spaventa reported that on January 28, Dr. Larry Friesen, Professor in the Biological Sciences Department was honored by the Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History with their first Legacy Award. His association with the SBMNH started when he was age 10 and continues today. As the presenter said: "Simply put, Larry is a world class teacher, scientist, photographer, and philanthropist." Superintendent/President Serban spoke of how important this honor is, along with how important our partnership with the Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History is.
- 4. Enrollment update
  - a. Sr. Dir. Institutional Assessment, Research & Planning Robert Else gave an enrollment update. As of February 2<sup>nd</sup> the unduplicated credit headcount was 17, 677 students, .7% less than last year on the same date, which is expected as we need to reduce enrollments as a result of the state budget cuts and workload reduction. He reported that the cumulative units-enrolled is up by 2.34 %, so there are fewer students but more units. He continued to report that the drop off in head-count is in non-California

residents. In Sections, the college has 2,096 sections open, 61 sections cut since December  $11^{th}$ , a little over ½ of those sections, 53% are still open, but only 16% of the seats are left. Still have many open sections but not open seats. Further discussion took place.

b. VP of Continuing Education Arellano reported that at Continuing Education, students are still enrolling in some of the classes. The non-duplicated head count for this winter term so far is 11,175 and duplicated head-count (enrollments) is 21,798. In winter 2009, the non-duplicated head count was 16,572 students and duplicated was 35,505. The number of sections Continuing Ed had in Winter 09 was 604 and 600 sections for this winter term. Arellano stated that the numbers this year are down slightly as there are still a large number of students who have not yet signed up.

### **Discussion Items**

- 5. Budget Development for 2010-11
  - a. VP of Business Services Sullivan reported on three of the significant items from the Tentative Budget Development Assumptions derived from the Governor's Proposed Budget handout. Sullivan started with Revenue Assumption #7 that the non-resident student enrollments from international and out-of-state students will be based on the 2009 – 10 actual because of the decline in the fees that we can charge there will be a total of \$199,200 decrease in revenue, assuming again that we have the exact same number of units. Further discussion took place. Sullivan continued with Revenue Assumption #10 which states that \$466,575 from the Physical Plant and Instructional Support Block Grant has been eliminated from our revenues. Superintendent/President Serban clarified the information from the Block Grant Allocations table stating that, per Chancellor's Office, this money was redirected to Career Technical Education and the college has not received this money for 2009 – 10. Sullivan spoke about the next item, Expense item 9, the CALPERS Board vote to increase the employer contribution rates to PERS which will result in an additional cost of approximately \$106,380 for SBCC in 2010-2011. CALPERS projected out a 4 year increase which translates into a cumulative annual expense for the college by 2013 – 14 totaling \$930,000. Sullivan went through the Adjusted Budget Chart that shows the adjustments in each area of Unrestricted General Fund Revenues and the Restricted General Fund from 2009 – 10 going to 2010 -11 totaling \$497,669.00 in a decrease to revenues. Further discussion and clarification took place.
  - b. Review of potential sources of funding for equipment and facility requests identified in program reviews (handout) Andreea Serban
  - c. Overall amounts requested for routine and non-routine equipment by areas.
    - i. Superintendent/President Serban opened this discussion item explaining the Routine and Non Routine Equipment Needs handout. This table shows the totals based on what the departments submitted in terms of needs for routine/nonroutine equipment that the college is committed to and will build into the

operational budgets for 2010/11 and forward. The total routine equipment amount requested for 2010-11 is \$186,670; the total non-routine equipment request is \$701,322 and there is the contingency funding of 15% of non-routine equipment replacement costs. Ed Programs and Business Services submitted non-routine equipment need requests. Continuing Education will also submit its requests shortly. The VPs explained why the amounts vary between the three years of 2010 - 11, 2011 - 12 and 2012 - 13.

- ii. VP of Business Services Sullivan reported that his departments submitted requests for large non-routine items such as trucks, carts, back hoe, a bus, etc. that need to be provided for and not all in the same year (non-routine). Sullivan went on to say that each year these needs will be re-evaluated. Academic Member Nevin asked how do you decide what is not required? VP Sullivan stated that each year the need would be re-evaluated by looking at the items closely and asking if the purchase can be delayed another year, or can it be given to another department? Also the copier replacement is a large cost that does not happen every year, another factor in adding to the yearly budget variance. Executive VP Friedlander stated that the requests are submitted through the departments to the Deans, then discussed in Deans' Council. Friedlander stated that the departments submitted everything they could think of, some departments were more extensive than others. The Deans worked closely with the Department Chairs to get the requests to a more realistic number. Each year different cost increases are built into the non-routine requests. Friedlander stated that so far this has been a good process.
- iii. Further discussion and clarification took place about building routine and non-routine equipment needs into the yearly budget. Superintendent/President Serban explained that the routine budget for 2010-11 will be "jump-started" from the Equipment 41 Fund, then 2011-12 onward, the routine needs will be part of our ongoing operating budget. The non-routine equipment costs will be funded from our Equipment Fund (Fund 41) but it is going to be in somewhat of a different manner than it has been in the past and we are going to cover that in a second. Academic Senate Member Kathy O'Connor pointed out that new supplies purchased are entered into the routine or non-routine expenses in our operating budget, so the budget amounts are actually going to change every year based on what is added. Superintendent/President Serban agreed that that is a good point. There was further clarification about what is routine and non-routine needs versus new equipment requests.
- iv. Superintendent/President Serban reported from the 1/31/2010 Equipment Fund YTD Budget Summary. Serban pointed out that the current amount shown in the Fiscal Year Variance column for the Fund 41000 – Equipment Fund is the total from the college's departmental cost centers. Different departments think that since this money is listed in their cost centers that the money is fully available to spend. However, the college in the past has needed to use some of these funds for cash flow or for other purposes. By moving to this model with the routine / non routine equipment funding as part of the operational budget, the college's aim is to safeguard that what is really needed to be funded in a given year is truly

going to happen. And as we have talked about, the college is going to use this Fund 41 to "jump-start" this funding approach in 2010-11. Serban stressed again that the Fiscal Year Variance column shows the current balance of \$3,384,214.40.

- v. Serban talked about Fund 41234 for Instructional Equipment Block Grant from the same report. The information contained in this table came from Exhibit A, 2008-09 Physical Plant and Instructional Support Ongoing and One-Time Block Serban explained that The Fiscal Year Adjusted Budget Grants Report. \$184,706.62 is higher than \$168,779 from Exhibit A is because of some money being carried forward from prior years (allowable with block grant allocations). Instructional Equipment Block Grant money covers basically all equipment or instructional support equipment. Serban explained how this money has been used in the past and that some of the items identified in the program reviews will be actually funded this year using this money. Serban pointed out the "Projected remaining on 6/30/10" column states there will be \$2.6 million in the Fund 41000 at the end of June – Equipment Fund and the projected remaining balance in Fund 41234 – Instructional Equipment Block Grant hopefully will still be \$100,000. For both funds the estimated balance at the end of June 2010 should be a total of \$2.7 million. Serban stated that once this money is gone, it is gone, since the state is no longer giving the Block Grants and because of that fact the suggestion on the table is to hold onto this as a reserve.
- vi. Superintendent/President Serban started the discussion from the handout: Funding model for equipment CPC Feb 2, 2010 and went through the table. The first line shows the current Fund 41 projected remaining balance 2.7 million will be used to "jump-start" funding the routine equipment needs in 2010-11. There is the non-routine equipment requests plus the contingency funding of \$806,520 that will draw down on that balance. Some of that will be used for some computer and server replacement. The college is now using a 5-year replacement cycle and it is not prudent to go any further. Serban reminded the group that in 2008 - 09 and 2009 -10 no transfers were made to the equipment budget. For 2010-11, there needs be a transfer of \$1.2 million from the general fund ending balances to the equipment fund. The ending balance after the Equipment requests have been fulfilled and the Program Review new equipment requests have been fulfilled will be \$1.5 million. Serban stated that in the history of the college, there has never been such low balance in the equipment fund. At different points in the college's history there has been \$4 million to \$8 million in the Equipment Fund balance. The proposal on the table now is that the college needs to commit to replenishing this fund. Serban stated that with the Program Review New Equipment Requests, the VPs have pared down, from their perspective, what the "must-haves" are. There was an overlap between what was submitted originally in the program reviews and what ended up on the nonroutine list. In the master spreadsheet listing resource requests submitted through the program reviews, every item has been kept and if not recommended for ranking, the reason why has been noted in the comment column. There were further questions and clarifications of the process, the ending balance of \$1.5

million and having enough in reserve for emergencies. VP Sullivan stated that when the \$1.2 million transferred from the general fund is plugged into the budget, we will have a chance to see if that holds up or does there need to be another number? Superintendent/President Serban stated that there are still more numbers that we need to look at and when all the pieces come together, we will see more clearly what we are able to fund. The balances are below what Serban thinks they ought to be, but Serban stated that the process needs to be transparent and understood, and after that the difficult decisions will be made as to how low is too low in terms of level of reserves we need to maintain. \$1.5 million is a new low that is being accepted as an option and that will cover us for about a year. It may be that 2011 – 12 comes and there is another budget cut and it may be again the case that the college cannot transfer money into the equipment fund. There was further discussion regarding the ending balance of the Equipment Fund, about it is a realistic amount of ending balances and various aspects of spending Fund 41. Serban stated that she and the managers are looking at departmental expenditures weekly to keep it in check. Serban stated that the college needs to have a true General Fund Reserve that is not spread across cost centers and a true savings account for emergency, cash flow purposes, liability purposes, etc. Serban stressed that this is a new fiscal reality where it is more important to have a higher reserve than the college had in better times. The college is more vulnerable to very unpredictable State funding activity, and it is only getting worse. There are new rules being created all the time such as deferred payments and no more block grant money. It is a time to be more careful and to have a solid reserve.

- d. Requests for new equipment and facility improvements not currently scheduled to be funded from Measure V prioritization from VPs and EC (handout)
  - i. Superintendent/President Serban opened the discussion from the "Draft for Discussion - Funding Model for Facilities." Money from the One-Time Funds, \$129,002, was included in the construction fund. Serban discussed the details around the amounts needed for the annual routine campus maintenance, the miscellaneous projects not supported by Measure V, the contingency funds and the transfer from the general fund ending balances to construction assuming a balance of \$ 4 mil. In the past, \$2 million was transferred every year to the construction fund; that was stopped in 2008 – 09. Measure V Funds now help the construction and, at the same time, the college now has the lowest balance in the construction fund than ever before. The requests in this report are not funded by Measure V Funds. Serban then discussed details around the Program Review New Facility Related Requests that are not covered by Measure V. Serban stated that if the college decides to go by this model, Serban reiterated that there will be a remaining balance of \$2.1 million which is the lowest ever in the history of the college. There was further clarification of the table. Serban stated that there are more rankings that have to be turned in and we will see how close this model is to those rankings. If they are too far from matching we will try to understand why and come up with some process to reconcile the various views on what was submitted. Classified Consultation Group President

Auchincloss asked if it is worth ranking the larger spreadsheet versus the shorter spreadsheet and has anything been taken off the long version. Serban answered that nothing has been taken off and that there is a comment column that describes what happened to the request. For Accreditation purposes, we need full documentation on what we have done here. Serban suggested that the members rank the shorter list because the college does not currently have the money to support all the requests on the longer list. They all discussed the process for ranking from the shorter list of the Program Reviews and discussed the time frame for ranking, plus were reminded to look at the comment column to see if the members agreed. The VPs would like the feedback. Serban stated that the last page of the handout is a work in progress done to see everything that is new on one page. Everything that has been discussed thus far is on that page.

- e. Current program requests for general fund supports (handout) Andreea Serban
- f. Next steps
  - i. Receive ranking from Academic Senate (including ITC and P&R), Classified Consultation Council
  - ii. Overall CPC ranking
  - iii. Recommendation on overall level of funding for the various needs identified

Superintendent/President Serban adjourned the meeting.

Next meetings: Tuesday, February 23, 3:00-4:30pm, A218C Tuesday, March 16, 3:00-4:30pm, A218C Tuesday, March 23, 3:00-4:30pm, A218C



## ACCREDITING COMMISSION for COMMUNITY and JUNIOR COLLEGES

10 COMMERCIAL BOULEVARD SUITE 204 NOVATO, CA 94949 TELEPHONE: (415) 506-0234 FAX: (415) 506-0238 E-MAIL: accjc@accjc.org www.accjc.org

Chairperson LURELEAN B. GAINES East Los Angeles College

Vice Chairperson FLOYD K. TAKEUCHI Public Member

President BARBARA A. BENO

Vice President SUSAN B. CLIFFORD

Vice President STEVE MARADIAN

Vice President GARMAN JACK POND

Associate Vice President LILY OWYANG January 29, 2010

Dr. Andreea Serban Superintendent/President Santa Barbara City College 721 Cliff Drive Santa Barbara, CA 93109

# RECEIVED

FEB - 3 2010

PRESIDENT'S OFFICE Santa Barbara City College

Dear President Serban:

The Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges, Western Association of Schools and Colleges, at its meeting January 6-8, 2010, reviewed the institutional Self Study Report and the report of the evaluation team which visited Santa Barbara City College Monday, October 19-Thursday, October 22, 2009. The Commission took action to reaffirm accreditation.

The college is commended for an effective program review model that links program review to resource allocation and college planning, for the annual review of the college's achievement of its goals and objectives as identified in the college plan, for its community services programs, and for creating an environment in which the entire college community is focused on student achievement and learning.

All colleges are required to submit a Midterm Report in the third year after each comprehensive evaluation. Santa Barbara City College should submit the Midterm Report by **October 15, 2012**. The Midterm Report describes resolution of any team recommendations made for improvement, includes a summary of progress on college-identified plans for improvement as expressed in the Self Study Report, and forecasts where the college expects to be by the time of the next comprehensive evaluation.

The college conducted a comprehensive self study as part of its evaluation. The Commission suggests that the plans for improvement of the institution included in its self study efforts be used to support the continuing improvement of Santa Barbara City College. The next comprehensive evaluation of the college will occur during Fall 2015.

The recommendations contained in the Evaluation Team Report represent the observations of the evaluation team at the time of the visit. The Commission reminds you that while an institution may concur or disagree with any part of the report, the college is expected to use the Evaluation Team Report to improve the educational programs and services of the institution. Dr. Andreea Serban Santa Barbara City College January 29, 2010 Page Two

I have previously sent you a copy of the Evaluation Team Report. Additional copies may now be duplicated. The Commission requires you to give the Evaluation Team Report and this letter dissemination to your college staff and to those who were signatories of your college Self Study Report. This group should include campus leadership and the Board of Trustees. The Commission also requires that the Evaluation Team Report and the Self Study Report be made available to students and the public. Placing copies in the college library can accomplish this. Should you want an electronic copy of the team report, please contact Commission staff.

On behalf of the Commission, I wish to express continuing interest in the institution's educational quality and students' success. Professional self-regulation is the most effective means of assuring integrity, effectiveness, and quality.

Sincerely,

Berebara a Beno

Barbara A. Beno, Ph.D. President

BAB/tl

cc: Mr. Robert Else, Accreditation Liaison Officer Board President, Santa Barbara Community College District Dr. John Nixon, Team Chair

#### January 2010 Commission Actions on Institutions

At its meeting, January 6-8, 2010, the Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges, Western Association of Schools and Colleges, took the following actions on institutional accreditation:

#### Reaffirmed Accreditation on the Basis of a Comprehensive Evaluation

- American River College
- Chabot College
- Citrus College
- Cosumnes River College
- Folsom Lake College
- Las Positas College
- Napa Valley College
- Sacramento City College
- Santa Barbara City College

#### Placed on Warning on the Basis of a Comprehensive Evaluation

• Taft College

#### Placed on Probation on the Basis of a Comprehensive Evaluation

Southwestern College

#### Granted Initial Accreditation on the Basis of a Comprehensive Evaluation

- Moreno Valley Campus
- Norco Campus

#### Approved as Eligible to Seek Candidacy Status on the Basis of an Eligibility Report

Willow International Community College Center, Reedley College

#### Removed from Show Cause and Placed on Probation on the Basis of a Show Cause Report

Diablo Valley College

#### Accepted Follow-Up Report with Visit

Salvation Army College for Officer Training at Crestmont

#### Accepted Follow-Up Report with Visit and Placed on Warning

Riverside City College

#### Accepted Follow-Up Report with Visit and Continued on Warning

- East Los Angeles College
- Feather River College
- Imperial Valley College

#### Accepted Follow-Up Report with Visit and Removed from Warning

• College of the Redwoods

#### Accepted Follow-Up Report with Visit, Removed from Warning, and Reaffirmed Accreditation

- El Camino College
- Lassen Community College
- Long Beach City College
- Palo Verde College
- Rio Hondo College
- Santa Ana College
- Santiago Canyon College
- Sierra College

#### Accepted Follow-Up Report with Visit and Placed on Probation

Cuesta College

#### Accepted Follow-Up Report with Visit and Continued on Probation

- Crafton Hills College
- Solano Community College

#### **Accepted Follow-Up Report**

- Cañada College
- College of San Mateo
- Contra Costa College
- Cuyamaca College
- DeAnza College
- Foothill College
- Grossmont College
- Los Medanos College
- Mt. San Jacinto College
- Skyline College
- Yuba College

#### **Accepted Focused Midterm Report**

- Honolulu Community College
- Kauai Community College

#### Accepted Midterm Report and Special Report

- Bakersfield College
- Cerro Coso College

#### Accepted College System Midterm Report

• University of Hawai'i Community College System

#### **Accepted Midterm Report and Visit**

Northern Marianas College

#### **Accepted Midterm Report**

- College of the Sequoias
- Hawai'i Community College
- Kapi'olani Community College
- Leeward Community College
- Porterville College
- Windward Community College

#### Accreditation Withdrawn at the Request of the Institution

Maui Community College

#### Accepted College Closure Report

Brooks College

#### Substantive Change Actions

San Joaquin Delta College: Approve move of Tracy Center to Mountain House site Western Career College: Approve name change to Carrington College California and to change its mission. Actions taken by the Substantive Change Committee between June 2009 and January 2010 to Approve the Following:

**Cerritos College**: to add 15 associate degree programs, 22 certificates and 27 verifications of completion programs to be offered 50% or more through a mode of distance or electronic delivery.

**Citrus College**: to offer an Emergency Management and Homeland Security Program via distance education or electronic delivery.

**Cypress College**: to add 18 associate degree programs and 54 certificate programs to be offered 50% or more through a mode of distance or electronic delivery.

Guam Community College: to add a Certificate in Medium/Heavy Truck Diesel Technology.

Los Angeles Harbor College: to offer three existing Associate of Arts degrees (Administration of Justice, Fire Technology and Business Administration) via a mode of distance education or electronic delivery. Moorpark College: to add 18 associate degree programs and 11 certificate programs to be offered 50% or more through a mode of distance or electronic delivery. The Committee acted to approve the proposal with a request for additional information.

**San Joaquin Valley College**: to add a Clinical and Administrative Medical Assisting (CAMA) Associate of Science Degree program at the Rancho Cordova, Modesto, Rancho Cucamonga and Hesperia campuses and the Hanford Center Extension, and the new Delano campus location.

**Santa Monica College**: to add 19 associate of arts degrees and 27 certificates of achievement and/or department certificates to be offered 50% or more through a mode of distance or electronic delivery. **Skyline Community College**: to add fourteen associate degree programs and 18 certificate programs to be offered 50% or more through a mode of distance or electronic delivery.

**Heald College**: to relocate the San Francisco Campus from 350 Mission Street to 875 Howard Street. **Kapi'olani Community College**: to establish two additional locations geographically apart from the main campus: an ADN Nursing Program at Leeward Community College and a Practical Nursing Program at Windward Community College.

**Monterey Peninsula College**: to offer 50% or more of a program through a mode of distance or electronic delivery at the Seaside Center.

**San Joaquin Valley College**: to add a new campus in Murrieta, California. The programs that were approved to be offered at the Murrieta Campus are the Respiratory Therapy A.S. Degree, the Clinical Medical Assisting Certificate and A.S. Degree, the Clinical and Administrative Medical Assisting A.S. Degree, the Administrative Health Care Management Certificate and A.S. Degree, and the Business Administration Certificate and A.S. Degree.

Gavilan College: to add a Carpenter Apprentice Program.

Heald College: to change ownership and control of the institution.

**Monterey Peninsula College**: to add a Family Research Studies Program offered 50% or more through a mode of distance or electronic delivery. The Committee acted to approve the proposal with the proviso that the College considers the program as a certificate.

**Palau Community College**: to add a Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) Program. The Committee acted to approve the proposal with the proviso that the College considers the program as a certificate.

Western Career College: to offer two new programs, Physical Therapist Assisting and Fitness Training.



Commission on the Future February 26-27, 2010 Le Rivage Hotel 4800 Riverside Boulevard, Sacramento, California 916.443.8400

# TENTATIVE AGENDA

<u>Friday, February 26</u>		
Welcome, Introductions and Commission Objectives	10:00 – 11:00am	
<i>The National Perspective and the CLASS Initiative</i> 11:00-11:45am Kay McClenney, Director, Community College Survey of Student Engagement		
<i>The Perspective of the Governor's Office</i> Paul Navarro, Deputy Legislative Secretary	11:45am-12:15pm	
Lunch		
<i>California Higher Education and the Economy</i> Hans Johnson, Public Policy Institute of California	12:45 –1:30pm	
<i>From Access to Success</i> Nancy Shulock, the Institute for Higher Education Leadership and Policy	1:30 – 2:15pm	
A Social Justice Perspective Ruben Lizardo, PolicyLink Anne Price, California Tomorrow	2:15-3:00pm	
<i>The Master Plan, California's Budget and State Expectations</i> Steve Boilard and Paul Steenhausen, Legislative Analyst's Office	3:00-4:00pm	
<i>The National Agenda for Student Success</i> Christopher Cabaldon, Consultant, New America Foundation	4:00-5:00pm	
<i>Dinner</i> Jack Scott, Chancellor, California Community Colleges	6:00-7:30pm	
After Dinner Board Games, Refreshments and Social Time ( <i>Optional</i> )	8:00-11:00pm	

## Saturday, February 27

System Initiatives and Data	<b>9:00 – 10:00am</b>	
Patrick Perry, Vice Chancellor, Technology, Research and Information Systems		
What's Been Written; What's Been Said	10:00-11:00am	
Rita Mize, Ph.D., Director, State Research and Policy		
The American Graduation Initiative	11:00-12:00pm	
(Speaker Pending)	-	
Lunch	12:00-12:45	
Commission Discussions	1:00-3:00pm	
- Subgroup formation		
- April Agenda development		
- Meeting feedback		